
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Last updated: 06/25/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

TRCS 

NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 30 

06/2000 

09/2000 

1 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The organizing principle of The Renaissance Charter School (“Renaissance”) is global citizenship. The 

mission of Renaissance is best described by our motto, “Developing Leaders for the Renaissance of New 

York.” We seek to develop committed and capable youth who will usher forth a 21st Century renaissance 

in their respective families and communities. Renaissance students will be prepared to contribute to the 

building of a humanistic culture in the local fields of the business, arts & culture, government, health, and 

not for profit sectors. 

The Renaissance Charter School is based on the conviction that a change in the destiny of a single 

individual can lead to a change in the destiny of a community, nation, and ultimately humankind. Its 

mission as a K 12 school is to foster educated, responsible, humanistic young leaders who will through 

their own personal growth spark a renaissance in New York. Its graduates will be global citizens with an 

abiding respect for peace, human rights, the environment, and sustainable development. 

Towards accomplishing this goal Renaissance has built a culture of community, cooperation, and 

collaboration. In the small, village like atmosphere, teachers team teach, classes are arranged in 

clusters, and parents play a central role. Students stay with the same dedicated teachers for two years, 
providing stability and enabling each student to feel cared for and well known. The school operates under 
a collaborative governance model in which all constituencies have a voice. 

The spirit of leadership can be best transmitted through example. Renaissance staff members model 
collaborative leadership which is characterized by compassion and responsible dialogue. Through this 

process wise decision making emerges. Renaissance is committed to graduating individuals who are 

competent, powerful thinkers, engaged citizens, and life long learners who will create the renaissance of 
New York. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 College and Career Readiness Renaissance mandates
participation in its college bound program, as a for credit
class in 9th 12th grades. Students chart a four year plan in 

2 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

the ninth grade that includes an online portfolio that helps 
establish a career plan, and an academic and community
involvement portfolio that showcases internships,
volunteerism, awards and other accomplishments. Rigorous
writing and research preparation culminates in a research
paper in senior year. 

Variable 2 Community and External Partnerships At Renaissance we
believe that leaders are people who actively take action to
better themselves and the world. The Leadership Program
motivates students to find their own answers to two 
essential questions: how can I make the world a better
place? and how do I want to contribute to the world? All
students in 9th 12th grades are required to participate in a
leadership, volunteer or internship program each semester
of high school. 

Variable 3 Global Humanities Renaissance's use of small group Global
Labs with a special attention to Geography education, and
an arts infused approach to ELA and Social Studies, is central
to our hands on approach to understanding the world. Model
units that engage students and train them to think like
geographers and write like historians have been shared with
two district schools. 

Variable 4 Experiential Learning Our curriculum has a three tiered
approach (1) core academics based on comprehensive and
effective delivery of standard based instruction; (2) project
based learning; and (3) experiential learning. Our
commitment to experiential learning is exemplified by
“Rensizzle Week” five consecutive days when students and
teachers actively explore a topic of interest in great depth,
culminating in a final project. 

Variable 5 Teacher Leadership Renaissance believes in collaborative
governance, while valuing and nurturing teachers and other
administrative staff to become leaders in the school. The 
school strives to give each constituency a powerful voice,
with opportunities to serve beyond the classroom as
Teaching & Learning Coordinators, PLC coaches, Cluster 
administrative leaders, serving on the Collaborative School
Governance, Advisory and Student Government committees. 

Variable 6 Engaged Parents Parents are included in Renaissance's
collaborative governance style, as elected members of the
Collaborative School Governance committee, parent
representation on our Board of Trustees, and positions on
hiring committees. The Administrator for School Culture and
Parent Engagement plans multiple parent forums and events
throughout the year. 

Variable 7 Timely Assessments to Drive Instruction Renaissance uses
various interim assessments across the grades to inform
teacher practice, using data principals learned from 

3 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

professional development providers TERC Using Data and
Achievement Network. Regular ANET assessments are given
in grades 2 8 and teachers gather to review the data that
will inform their targeted instruction. NWEA assessments are
given in elementary grades, and mock Regents exams are 
given and analyzed by teacher data teams. 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

Social Emotional Wellness Students can only be successful
academically and in life if they nurture their social emotional
wellness. At Renaissance, this is done through morning
meetigs, and advisories in grades 6 10. We also have led and
participated in federal grants related to youth mental health
which allows for professional development for staff and
programs to support students. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

www.renaissancecharter.org 

604 

556 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

4 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

No 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades Served 
at Site (K 5, 6 9,
etc.) 

Site 1 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

5 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	
	
	

	 	 	

	

	
	
	

	

	 	 	

	
	

	

	 	
	

	

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- (No response) 

located) space or in private 

space? 

m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school Is school 
will leave 
current co

working with
NYCDOE to 

location expand into 
current 
space? 

Site 1 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
move to 
separate
space? 

If so, list the 
proposed
space and
year planned
for move 

School at Full 
Capacity at
Site 

6 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Rebekah Oakes 

Position Director of Development & Partnerships 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

7 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/24 

Thank you. 

8 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	

Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/10/2019 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000042221 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 07/16/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

Partially Met. Not Met
in District; 
TRCS: 48% CSD 30: 
55% (Exceeded CSD
in 8th Gr: 61%) 

Exceeded NYC: TRCS: 
48% 
NYC: 47% (Exceeded
City in all grades.) 

The daily schedule
from K 8 has been 
altered so that a 
dedicated period is
given to the Targeted
Reading Intervention
Program (TRIP) four
days a week, for
every student, K 8, 
with the goal of
achieving grade level
mastery. We will
begin by
benchmarking every
student, using the
Fountas and Pinnell 

1 / 15 



	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	
	
	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	
	
	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

The school will show 
academic 
performance with a
percent of students
proficient at or above
Level 3 that meets or 
exceeds the percent
proficient of the
Community School
District (CSD) of
location and also 
meets or exceeds the 
citywide percent
proficient on the New
York State ELA 
examination. 

NYS ELA Exam Not Met 

benchmarking
system. Based on
that data, teachers 
will carefully group
similarly leveled
children together in
small guided reading
or independent
reading groups,
regardless of grade
level and class. 
Teachers work with 
students targeting
the specific reading
skills of fluency,
comprehension, and
accuracy to build
capacity and
mastery. Once
mastered, the 
student will move to 
the next leveled 
group. Then, to foster
the passion and
dedication to reading,
teachers work with 
small groups of
students who select 
independent reading
that fits into that 
month’s theme and 
their personal
interests. Teachers 
monitor the students’ 
progress and
facilitate small group
discussions and 
writing projects
around the thematic 
units. 

Following the NYS
CCLS for ELA and 
Literacy, each
teacher, regardless of
subject area, will be
responsible for
ensuring that
students can read 
and write within each 
subject area while
developing a strong
content knowledge 

2 / 15 



	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

Academ 
ic Goal 
2 

Academ 
ic Goal 
3 

The school will show 
academic 
performance with a
percent of students
proficient at or above
Level 3 that meets or 
exceeds the percent
proficient of the
Community School
District (CSD) of
location and also 
meets or exceeds the 
citywide percent
proficient on the New
York State Math 
examination. 

Each year, at least
75 percent of
students in the high
school accountability
cohort passing an
English Regents
exam will have a 
score of 75 or above 
by the end of their
fourth year. 

NYS Math Exam 

NYS ELA Regents 
exams 

Met 

Met 

base. TRCS 2’s 
professional
development
initiatives will be 
designed to support
all teachers in 
improving students’
ELA skills within the 
context of specific
content instruction, 
and teachers will 
work independently
and in PLCs to 
incorporate literacy
development into
their lessons and 
learning experiences,
with the goal that
every child will be
decoding and
comprehending all of
their subjects. 

Met : TRCS 54% 
CSD 30 54% 
Exceeded: TRCS 54% 
NYC 46% 

8th Grade at 69% 
exceeded CSD 30 
and NYC, and that 
percentage includes
the NYS Math Exam 
and the NYS Algebra
1 Regents. 

TRCS: 79% 

89% of students 
passed the exam
with a score of 65 or 

3 / 15 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	

	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

4 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, at least
75 percent of
students in the high
school accountability
cohort passing a
Math Regents exam
will have a score of 
75 or above by the
end of their fourth 
year. 

Each grade level
cohort will 
demonstrate growth
with a reduction by a
half between the 
percent at or above
Level 3 on the 
previous year's NYS
ELA exam (baseline)
and the CSD or 
citywide percent
(whichever is higher)
of students proficient
at or above Level 3 
on the current year's
State ELA exam. For 
schools in which the 
number of students 
scoring above
proficiency in a
grade level cohort
exceeded the CSD or 
citywide percent
proficient (whichever
is higher) on the 

NYS Math Regents Not Met exams 

higher. 3 students
missed 75 by 1 point;
2 students by 2
points. 3 students
with IEPs exceeded 
75% proficiency. 

The Math 
Department started
identifying students
that did not pass or
had a score below 75, 
who could retake the 
exam and have 
assigned them to
after school, before
school and lunch
time tutoring with
certified Math 
instructors. The 
Learning Center staff
is also working with
students missing
regents on a daily
basis, to prepare
them to retake the 
exams in January. 

NYS ELA Exam Data not available. 

4 / 15 
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previous year's ELA
exam, the school is 
expected to
demonstrate growth
comparable to the
CSD in the current 
year. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each grade level
cohort will 
demonstrate growth
with a reduction by a
half between the 
percent at or above
Level 3 on the 
previous year's NYS
Math exam (baseline)
and the CSD or 
citywide percent
(whichever is higher)
of students proficient
at or above Level 3 
on the current year's
State Math exam. For 
schools in which the 
number of students 
scoring above
proficiency in a
grade level cohort
exceeded the CSD or 
citywide percent
proficient (whichever
is higher) on the
previous year's Math
exam, the school is 
expected to
demonstrate growth
comparable to the
CSD in the current 
year. 

The school will 
perform at the 60th
percentile or above
compared with the
citywide averages for
its 4 year graduation
rate and in the 60th 
percentile for its 6
year graduation rate. 

NYS Math Exam Data not available. 

4 year graduation:
96% 4 and 6 year Met graduation rate. 6 year graduation:
98% 

The school will show 
progress towards
having 75% of 

5 / 15 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

students enrolled in 
each grade 9 11
accumulate 10 or 
more credits towards 
graduation. The
school will be 
accountable for all 
credits accumulated 
by students who
were continuously
enrolled in the school 
including students
who have dropped
out or enrolled in an 
accredited GED 
program, however,
excluding the credits
accumulated by
students who have 
transferred from or to 
another school, were 
incarcerated, left the 
country, or died
during the school
year. The school will
report this each
September by
submitting a report
of student credit 
accumulation from 
the previous school
year for purposes of
NYC DOE School 
Quality Reports. 

9th grade: 96%
ATS, Credit 10th grade: 89%Met Accumulation 11th grade: 90%

12th grade: 96% 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Each year, at least
75 percent of each
9th grade cohort will
graduate within four 
years. 

Graduation Data Met Met: 96% 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

Each year, at least
80 percent of each
9th grade cohort will
graduate within five 
years. 

Graduation Data Met Met: 98% 

2. Do have more academic goals Yes 

to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

6 / 15 



	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

11 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
12 

Academ 
ic Goal 
13 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

The school will show 
progress towards
achieving 75 percent
of 4th and 8th 
graders who have
been enrolled at the 
school on BEDS day
for at least two 
consecutive years
performing at or
above level 3 on the 
New York State 
Science examination. 

Each year, at least
75 percent of
students in the high
school accountability
cohort will pass a
science Regents
exam with a score of 
65 or above. 

Each year, at least
75 percent of
students in the high
school accountability
cohort who are not 
taking an alternate
Pathways
assessment in lieu of 
the history Regents
exam, will pass a
history Regents exam
with a score of 65 or 
above. 

The school will show 
progress towards
achieving 75 percent
of each graduating
senior class having
taken and passed a
combination of three 
or more Regents
exams, College Now
Stem courses, and/or
Advanced Placement 
exams in science, 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

NYS Science Exam 

NYS Regents Science
Exams 

NYS Regents Social
Studies Exams 

NYS Regents Science
exam data; College
Now Science course 
reports; AP Science
course and exam 
data 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

Met 

Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

4th Cohort Met: 88% 
8th Cohort Met: 80% 

Met: 92% 

Met: 100% 

Met Met: 75% 

7 / 15 
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15 

computer science,
engineering and/or
mathematics. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, 75
percent of 12th
grade students will
apply and be
accepted to a post
secondary institution,
college or university.
This goal will be
measured by a
review of the school's 
roster of 12th grade
students and their 
letters of acceptance
or admission. 

College and Career Met Office Data 

100% applied and to
date, 98% were 
accepted (one
student is pending.) 

Met: In keeping with
our school’s mission 
to develop leaders,
TRCS offers students 
many opportunities
to explore how they
can make the world a 
better place and how
they will contribute to
the world as adults. 
In the elementary
grades there was
service learning
through "Little Sizzle"
activities and middle 
and high school
advisory service
trips. 

In ninth and tenth 
grade advisories
students decide on a 
community service
projects they carry
out. This year
students planted
trees in Jackson 
Heights, helped weed
and prepare the
People’s Garden in
the Bronx for harvest, 
and cleaned parts of
Rockaway Beach.
One of the advisories 
raised $611.00 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

Through qualitative
measures, including
student engagement
in service learning,
social activism 
leadership
development and
community service
activities, the school 
will live its mission to 
"Develop Leaders for
the Renaissance of 
New York. 

College and Career Met Office Data 

through a bake sale
and purchased items
for 25 care packages
for children at 
Elmhurst Hospital. 

Through the College
and Career Office’s 
Leadership Program
students in grades 9
12 explore their
interests, develop
their leadership skills
and learn about local 
and international 
social issues. They
participate in
programs such as
Global Kids in which 
they use open source
technology tools to
create socially
conscious projects
such as portraits of
underrepresented
women of color in 
STEM. Some of our 
students’ images
were featured in 
rotation on over 
1,700 LinkNYC 
terminals. Our 
students volunteered 
at the Regal Heights
Rehabilitation Center 
and NY Presbyterian
Hospital, tutored
their peers, and
provided socialization
support to a student
with Autism. 
Students participate
in a "Black Lives 
Matter" study group,
and Gay Straight
Alliance activities 
planned during lunch
hour meetings. 

Every year the junior
class organizes a
Social Justice Day for
the high school 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

In support of TRCS'
mission to develop
leaders and global
citizens, students will 
regularly engage
with community and
cultural partners
through experiential
learning
opportunities,
interdisciplinary units
developed in core
subjects, and the
high school
leadership program
matching students
with internships and
outside elective 
credits. 

College and Career Met Office data 

student body. They
research and 
facilitate workshops
on issues that are 
important to them.
This year’s
workshops included,
Sexual Harassment 
Awareness, Sex 
Worker’s Rights,
Racism in Sports, and
Mental Health. 

Met: Service learning
through elementary
"Little Sizzle" and 
"Rensizzle" activities 
for middle and high
school; HS leadership
choices, GSA and 
Black Lives Matter 
groups, Social Justice
Day and other
structured and 
unstructured events. 
100% of 9th and 10th 
graders were enrolled
in Leadership
programs, and 88%
of all 9 12th graders. 

3. Do have more academic goals No 

to add? 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

10 / 15 



	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	
	
	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Each year, the school
will have an averageOrg ATS student daily student Met 95.5% Goal 1 attendance data attendance rate of at 
least 95 percent. 

Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Each year 95 percent
of all students 
enrolled on the last ATS student Met 96% day of the school enrollment data 
year will return the
following school year. 

Each year 90 percent
of all instructional 
staff employed Met: all staff were during the prior TRCS personnel data Met asked to return; one school year will moved out of state. return and/or be
asked to return the 
following school year. 

Each year, teachers
will express
satisfaction and 
commitment with 
their job by actively
participating in the
many teacher
leadership initiatives
at the school 
including serving ont
he board, TRCS personnel data Met 
collaborative School 
Governance 
Committee, as a 
teacher coordinator, 
or leading or
participating in an
action research, 
grant or RFP initiative
to improve teaching
and learning 

Met: Teacher leaders 
for all clusters; peer
to peer learning
groups; grant related
research teams; RTI 
teams, grade level
data teams, student 
club and student 
government mentors
and leaders. 

Met: At the beginning
of each year during
the charter term, the 
CSG convened with 
elected 
representatives from 
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Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org 

The Collaborative 
School Governance 
committee, 
consisting of parents,
students, teachers 
and staff will develop
and/or review goals
as part of a Charter
School 
Comprehensive
Education Plan, 
which will guide the
school's priorities for
the following year.
The committee will 
meet regularly as a
whole group or in
committee to ensure 
these priorities are
being worked on. 

CSG minutes and Met records 

each constituency in
the school 
community and
reviewed progress
toward meeting the
goals set forth in The
Charter CEP. The CSG 
established a 
calendar of meetings
and activities for the 
year, to address
specific initiatives
that would support
the goals of The
Charter CEP. These 
initiatives included: 
activities and events 
to increase parent
awareness and 
involvement; school 
health and wellness; 
promotion of
academic success for 
students transitioning
from our middle 
school to high school;
promotion of TRCS to
potential incoming
students and 
families; increasing
student advocacy
and involvement for 
the promotion of
positive shifts in
school culture and 
academic success; 
and political
advocacy for equity
in funding and school
sustainability. 
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Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational 
goals to add? 

Yes 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met 
Evaluate Progress 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

As a conversion 
charter school, 
Renaissance has 
faced many budget
challenges which
have been 
documented in our 
charter renewal 
application and
certified financial 

13 / 15 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

Each year, the school
will operate on a
balanced budget and
maintain a stable 
cash flow. 

(A budget will be
considered 
"balanced" if 
revenues equal or
exceed 
expenditures.) 

Annual Certified Not Met Financial Report 

reports. Both the City
and State understand 
these challenges and
have also 
recognized that we
had no control over 
the funding
formula change or
the negotiated union 
contracts 
that have caused 
financial stress. While 
the statements show 
that we have 
expenditures
exceeding revenues,
most of these 
expenditures are
future payouts.
Renaissance has 
been able to maintain 
a stable cash flow 
and pay its ongoing
daily expenditures 
even 
through these
difficult times. We 
have a solid plan
in place to ensure our
financial viability
moving
forward that will not 
only address the
issues above 
but allow us to 
replenish our 
reserves. 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 07/10/2019 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 10262382 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 557 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 18411 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

507047 

198382 

705429 

1266 

2 / 2 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of
The Renaissance Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Renaissance Charter School (the 
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of  June  30, 2019, and the related  
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In  making those risk  assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  



 

 

	
	

  
    

   
  

	
	 	 	

 
    

  	 	 	 	 	
	

 
	 	 	 	 	

	
  

    
      

       

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
 	 	        

 
 

        
   

 	 	 	

 
 
 
 

 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Renaissance Charter School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update 
(“ASU”) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not‐
for‐Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 24, 2018. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has 
been derived.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30, 
2019 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 30, 2019 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AT JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals at June 30, 2018) 

6/30/19 6/30/18 
Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Government grants receivable 
Grants receivable - New York City (Note 3) 
Other receivables (Note 4) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 

$167,918 
401,285 

23,029 
85,517 

9,075 

$223,410 
1,073,823 

26,527 
49,161 
10,004 

Total current assets 686,824 1,382,925 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash (Note 5) 
Fixed assets, net (Note 6) 

70,118 
137,671 

70,196 
190,330 

Total assets $894,613 $1,643,451 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 

$159,764 
2,136,795 

$260,226 
2,154,383 

Total current liabilities 2,296,559 2,414,609 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Other liabilities - long term portion 1,000,000 1,600,000 

Total liabilities 3,296,559 4,014,609 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions (Note 7) 

(2,406,635) 
4,689 

(2,371,158) 
0 

Total net assets (2,401,946) (2,371,158) 

Total liabilities and net assets $894,613 $1,643,451 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

Without Donor With Donor Total Total 
Restrictions Restrictions 6/30/19 6/30/18 

Public support and revenue: 
Public school district: 

Revenue - resident student enrollment $8,524,392 $8,524,392 $7,965,764 
Revenue - students with special
  education services 1,195,191 1,195,191 1,254,073 

Total public school district revenue 9,719,583 0 9,719,583 9,219,837 

Federal grants 462,282 462,282 561,155 
State and city grants 1,176,731 1,176,731 1,255,013 
Food program grants 350,557 350,557 292,612 
Contributions and other operating income 97,791 4,689 102,480 116,087 

Total public support and revenue 11,806,944 4,689 11,811,633 11,444,704 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Regular education 8,237,253 8,237,253 8,800,808 
Special education 1,559,266 1,559,266 1,687,280 
Pre-kindergarten 242,734 242,734 228,373 
Food program 569,025 569,025 499,177 

Total program services 10,608,278 0 10,608,278 11,215,638 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 1,105,038 1,105,038 1,092,406 
Fundraising 129,105 129,105 114,766 

Total supporting services 1,234,143 0 1,234,143 1,207,172 

Total expenses 11,842,421 0 11,842,421 12,422,810 

Change in net assets (35,477) 4,689 (30,788) (978,106) 

Net assets - beginning of year (2,371,158) 0 (2,371,158) (1,393,052) 

Net assets - end of year ($2,406,635) $4,689 ($2,401,946) ($2,371,158) 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

Program Services Supporting Services 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education 

Pre-
Kindergarten 

Food 
Program 

Total 
Program 
Services 

Management 
and 

General Fundraising 

Total 
Supporting 

Services 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/19 

Total 
Expenses 
6/30/18 

Salaries $4,981,755 $933,290 $152,151 $174,500 $6,241,696 $553,657 $82,512 $636,169 $6,877,865 $7,537,594 
Employee benefits and
  payroll taxes 
Pension contributions 

1,406,235 
1,206,978 

263,447 
226,117 

42,948 
36,864 

49,257 
42,278 

1,761,887 
1,512,237 

156,285 
134,140 

23,291 
19,991 

179,576 
154,131 

1,941,463 
1,666,368 

1,816,865 
1,524,562 

Total personnel costs 7,594,968 1,422,854 231,963 266,035 9,515,820 844,082 125,794 969,876 10,485,696 10,879,021 

Professional fees 113,062 21,132 58,084 192,278 194,246 194,246 386,524 461,603 
Repairs and maintenance 
Curriculum and

12,489 2,340 381 1,885 17,095 1,388 207 1,595 18,690 20,930 

  classroom expenses 
Professional development 
Equipment and furnishings 
Office expenses 
Food services 

329,402 
10,014 
17,882 
19,999 

77,844 
1,876 
3,350 
3,746 

4,668 
305 
546 
611 

351 
4,799 

701 
232,285 

411,914 
12,546 
26,577 
25,057 

232,285 

1,113 
1,987 
9,942 

166 
296 
332 

0 
1,279 
2,283 

10,274 
0 

411,914 
13,825 
28,860 
35,331 

232,285 

530,073 
32,251 
43,576 
43,214 

210,619 
Technology 
Marketing and recruitment 
Insurance 

55,174 

42,853 

10,337 

8,029 

1,686 

1,309 

1,933 

1,501 

69,130 
0 

53,692 

6,132 
1,228 

11,498 

914 

710 

7,046 
1,228 

12,208 

76,176 
1,228 

65,900 

42,293 
5,537 

74,893 
Bad debt expense 
Depreciation 41,410 7,758 1,265 1,451 

0 
51,884 

28,820 
4,602 686 

28,820 
5,288 

28,820 
57,172 

6,412 
72,388 

Total other than
  personnel costs 642,285 136,412 10,771 302,990 1,092,458 260,956 3,311 264,267 1,356,725 1,543,789 

Total expenses $8,237,253 $1,559,266 $242,734 $569,025 $10,608,278 $1,105,038 $129,105 $1,234,143 $11,842,421 $12,422,810 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2018) 

6/30/19 6/30/18 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
  to net cash used for operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Government grants receivable 
Grants receivable - New York City 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Restricted cash 

($30,788) 

57,172 

672,538 
3,498 

(36,356) 
929 

78 

($978,106) 

72,388 

(529,021) 
(26,527) 
(32,826) 

6,000 
4,813 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Grant advance - New York City 

(100,462) 
(17,588) 

0 

76,687 
113,741 
(14,695) 

Other liabilities - long term portion (600,000) 300,000 
Total adjustments (20,191) (29,440) 

Net cash used for operating activities (50,979) (1,007,546) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of furniture and equipment (4,513) (60,761) 

Net cash used for investing activities (4,513) (60,761) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (55,492) (1,068,307) 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 223,410 1,291,717 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $167,918 $223,410 

Supplemental disclosure: 
Interest and taxes paid $0 $0 

The attached notes and auditor's report are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1 ‐ Organization and Nature of Activities 

The Renaissance Charter School (the “School”) is a PK-12 public charter school located in 
Jackson Heights, Queens, New York. Our mission is to foster educated, responsible young
leaders who through their own personal growth will spark a renaissance in New York. The 
School is a publicly funded, privately managed school, which is independent of the New 
York City  Department of  Education  (“NYCDOE”),  and  subject  to certain administrative 
requirements. The School was originally granted its charter in May 2000 and its most 
recent charter renewal expires on June 30, 2024. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the 
School entered its first full day pre-kindergarten class.  

The School has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from Federal 
income taxes under Section  501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes has been reflected in the accompanying financial statements. 
They have not been designated as a private foundation. 

In June 2017, Renaissance Charter School II (the TRCS II), a charter school developed to 
replicate the learning experience of the School, was approved by the New York State 
Education Department (“NYSED”) to operate in New York State. The anticipated opening is 
scheduled for the Fall of 2020. Renaissance Charter School II was notified in February 2019 
by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Renaissance Charter School II is related to the 
School by virtue of common board members. 

Note 2 ‐ Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the School have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is the method of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or
incurred regardless of when cash is received or paid.  

Effective July 1, 2018, the School adopted the requirements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board’s Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 – Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not‐for‐Profit Entities (ASU 2016-
14). This standard addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset 
classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, 
and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key change required by ASU 2016-
14 is the net asset classes used in these financial statements. Amounts  previously
reported as unrestricted net assets are now reported as net assets without donor
restrictions and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted net assets are now reported  as net assets with donor
restrictions. A footnote on liquidity has also been added (Note 12). 
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Implementation  of ASU  No. 2016-14 did not require any restatement of opening 
balances related to the periods presented. 

Not-for-profit organizations report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to specific classes of net assets, as follows: 

 Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – accounts for activity without donor-
imposed restrictions. 

 Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – relates to activity based on specific donor 
restrictions that are expected to be satisfied by the passage of time or 
performance of activities. 

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The School considers all liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or 
less  to be  cash and cash  equivalents. Cash  in escrow  accounts that are subject to
regulations are excluded from cash and cash equivalents. 

c. Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentration of credit
risk consist of cash, money market accounts, and a certificate of deposit, which have
been placed with a financial institution that management deems to be creditworthy. 
From time-to-time, cash balances may be in excess of insurance levels. At year end, 
there was a significant uninsured balance; however, the School has not experienced any 
losses from the default of any financial institution.  

d. Capitalization Policy
Property and equipment that exceed $1,000 and have a useful life of greater than one 
year are capitalized at cost or at fair value at the date of gift. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, 
as follows: 

Furniture and equipment – 5 to 10 years 
Building improvements – 10 years 

e. Revenue – Public School District and Government Grants 
The School receives grants from the United States Department of Education, NYSED and 
NYCDOE to carry out its operations. Program revenues are recognized based on rates
established by the School’s funding sources and the amount realizable on the accrual
basis in the period during which services are provided. 

All government grants have been recognized as income when earned, either based on 
performance of certain milestones or by incurring expenses that can be reimbursed
under the terms of the grant agreement. The difference between cash received and
revenue recognized is reflected as government grants receivable or refundable 
advances. 
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f. Contributions 
Contributions are recognized at the earlier of when cash is received or at the time a 
pledge becomes unconditional in nature. Contributions are recorded in the net asset 
classes referred to above depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
imposed restriction. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. If donor restricted 
contributions are satisfied in the same period they were received, they are classified as
without donor restrictions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. 

Contributions expected to be received within one year are recorded at net realizable 
value. Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value using a risk adjusted discount rate. 
Conditional contributions are recognized as income when the conditions have been
substantially met. All receivables at year end are due to be collected within one year. 

g. Donated Services  
Donated  services are recognized  in  circumstances where those services create or
enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals
possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased, if not provided in-
kind. 

Board members and other individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of 
tasks that assist the School. These services do not meet the criteria outlined above and 
have not been recorded in the financial statements. 

h. Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the financial statements. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are
determined by management on an equitable basis. 

The following expense was allocated using time and effort as the basis: 

 Salaries 

The following expenses were allocated using the full time equivalent of staff allocation 
as the basis: 

 Taxes and benefits 
 Pension 
 Repairs and maintenance 
 Professional development 
 Equipment and furnishings 
 Office expenses
 Information technology 
 Insurance 
 Depreciation 

All other expenses have been charged directly to the applicable program or supporting 
services. 
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i. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
and  the  reported amounts of  revenues and  expenses  during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

j. Comparative Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include 
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Such information should be read in
conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, 
from which the summarized information was derived. 

k. Contingencies  
Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not believe
that any audits, if they were to occur, would result in material disallowed costs, and has 
not established any reserves. Any disallowed costs would be recorded in the period 
notified. 

l. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
The School does not believe its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax 
positions. Tax returns for periods ending J
examination by applicable taxing authorities. 

une 30, 2016 and later are subject to 

m. Subsequent Events 
Management has evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure events subsequent 
to the date of the statement of financial position through October 30, 2019, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent 
to the statement of financial position date, through our evaluation date, that would
require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

n. New Accounting Pronouncement
On June 21, 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the 
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The ASU which 
becomes effective for the June 30, 2020 year, with early implementation permitted, 
provides guidance on whether a receipt from a third-party resource provider should be 
accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 
958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions.  

FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The ASU, which 
becomes effective for the June 30, 2020 year, focuses on a principle-based model. It
highlights the identification of performance obligations of the contract, determining the 
price  and  allocating that  price  to the performance obligation  so  that revenue is
recognized as each performance obligation is satisfied. 
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In addition, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU, which becomes effective for
the June 30, 2021 year, requires the full obligation of long-term leases to be recorded as 
a liability with a corresponding “right to use asset” on the statement of financial 
position. 

The  School is  in the process  of evaluating  the  impact these standards will have on 
future financial statements. 

Note 3 ‐ Grants Receivable/(Advance) 

Grants receivable/(advance) on the contract with the NYDOE can be summarized as
follows: 

6/30/19 6/30/18 

Beginning grant receivable/(advance) $26,527 ($14,695) 
Funding based on allowable FTE’s 9,719,583 9,219,837 
Advances received (9,723,081) (9,178,615)
Ending receivable/(advance)   $23,029   $26,527 

Note 4 ‐ Related Party Transactions 

The Renaissance Charter School II (“TRCS II”) owes the School $85,517 and $49,161 related 
to  expenses  paid on  TRCS II’s  behalf  for the years ended  June  30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively 

Note 5 ‐ Restricted Cash 

An escrow account has been established to meet the requirement of the Board of Regents of 
the State of New York. The purpose of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available
for an orderly dissolution or transition process in the event of termination of the charter or 
school closure. 

Note 6 ‐ Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets can be summarized as follows: 

6/30/19 6/30/18 

Furniture and equipment $523,728 $519,215 
Building improvements   442,249   442,249 

965,977 961,464 
Less: accumulated depreciation (828,306) (771,134) 
Total fixed assets - net $137,671 $190,330 

Note 7 ‐ Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for program purposes at year-end. 
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Note 8 ‐ Significant Concentrations 

The School is dependent upon grants from NYCDOE to carry out its operations. 
Approximately 82% and 81% of the School’s total public support and revenue was from 
NYCDOE for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Note 9 ‐ Donated Space 

The School is co-located with PS 255Q, a district 75 program, in a NYCDOE facility, and 
utilizes approximately  62,000 square  feet at  no charge.  The School was unable to 
determine a value for this service. 

Note 10 ‐ Multi‐Employer Benefit Plan 

The School participates in two multi-employer plans that provide defined benefits to 
certain contract labor covered by collective bargaining agreements.  The School contributed 
a total of $1,666,368 and $1,524,562 to both plans during the year ended June 30, 2019 
and 2018, respectively. The School’s participation in these plans for the annual period 
ended June 30, 2019 is outlined below. The “EIN” column provides the Employer 
Identification Number (“EIN”) of the plan. The Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) zone 
status is not applicable because they are government plans. 

Teachers’ Retirement System of the City of New York Pension Plan as of June 30, 2019 
consisted of the following: 

Collective Bargaining
Plan PPA Zone Agreement 

EIN End Date Status Expiration Date Contribution 

90-0584726 6/30/18 N/A 10/31/18 $1,619,597 

Board of Education Retirement System Pension Plan as of June 30, 2019 consisted of the 
following: 

Collective Bargaining
Plan PPA Zone Agreement 

EIN End Date Status Expiration Date Contribution 

13-6400434 6/30/18 N/A Various $46,771 

Note 11 ‐ Net Asset Deficit 

The Board and School Management Team have taken several steps to address and
overcome the net asset deficit as of June 30, 2019. The following steps were taken to ensure 
that the school is viable going forward: 

1) The School is working with New York City (NYC”) and State to get financial relief to 
provide additional funding to cover retroactive payments for personnel costs that are 
required of a unique “conversion school”.  

2) The most recent State Budget includes additional funding for conversion charter 
schools. 

3) UFT and New York City negotiated a new contract that took effect February 14, 2019. 
This contract doesn’t require the School to make additional retroactive payments for
personnel costs, which will allow the School to project its operating expenses more 
effectively. 
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4) The School was approved and implemented a student enrollment increase and has 
made programmatic cuts. Based on budget projected changes, the School has a fi
balanced budget which includes a provision to replenish the emergency fund. 

ve-year 

5) The School has the ability to add additional students based on a “charter enrollment 
float” should this become necessary. 

Note 12 ‐ Liquidity and Availability of Financial Resources 

The School strives to maintain cash on hand to be available for its general expenditures, 
liabilities, and other obligations for on-going operations. As part of its liquidity 
management, the School operates its programs within a board-approved budget and relies 
primarily on NYC per pupil funding to fund its operations and program activities.   

The following reflects the School’s financial assets at June 30, 2019 that are available to
meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year: 

Cash and cash equivalents $167,918 
Accounts receivable due within 1 year: 

Government grants 401,285 
NYC Department of Education 23,029 

Total financial assets $592,232 

Less amounts not available to be used within one year: 
Contributions restricted – purpose restrictions   (4,689)

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $587,543 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees of
The Renaissance Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of The Renaissance 
Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 
2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in  internal control, such  that there is  a  reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC 

October 30, 2019 
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THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 

Current Year: 

None. 

Prior Year: 

None. 
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Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119015522/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119015522/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading See extension. 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading None required 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119015522/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading None required. 
the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

	 	  
 
 
 

 
     

 
	

 
       

      
      

   
    

 
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	  
 

    
        

 
 
 
 
 

 

Observations and Recommendations 

To Management of
The Renaissance Charter School (“the School”) 

As a result  of our  audit for the years ending  June 30, 2019, we want  to provide follow-up to  
comments raised in the prior year: 

Operating Reserve Policy
In the past, we  informed the School  that  the  New  York State Education Department (“NYSDOE”)
indicated that Schools should have a viable operating reserve with a board approved policy about 
the purpose and use of operating reserves.  The purpose of the policy is to define and set goals for 
reserve funds, clearly describe authorization for use of  reserves and outline requirements  for  
reporting and monitoring. We recommended that the School adopted such  a  policy for operating  
reserves to comply with NYSDOE recommendations. 

Follow‐up to June 30, 2019: While the management team has considered this recommendation, at this 
time the School does not have extra cash on hand to fund such a reserve. Therefore, adoption of a formal 
operating reserve policy has been put on hold until such reserve funds have been established. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of 
trustees, and others within the organization, and is not intended to  be  and should  not  be  used  by  
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

October 30, 2019 





                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

 Statement Period 
From September 01, 2019 
To September 30, 2019 
Page 1 of 2

 PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP 181 
565 FIFTH AVENUE 
NEW YORK, NY 10017 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 8-181 
ESCROW 
35-59 81ST STREET 
JACKSON HEIGHTS NY 11372 

See Back for Important Information 

Primary Account:  

AVOID BUSINESS E-MAIL FINANCIAL FRAUD! PLEASE VISIT THE "PRIVACY & SECURITY" 
SECTION LOCATED UNDER THE "ABOUT US" HEADING AT WWW.SIGNATURENY.COM. SELECT 
"BUSINESS E-MAIL COMPROMISE" TO READ THE RECENT NEWS FROM THE FEDERAL 
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION REGARDING FRAUD TARGETING BUSINESSES, INCLUDING 
GUIDANCE ON WHAT YOU CAN DO TO REDUCE YOUR RISK OF BECOMING A VICTIM. 
SIGNATURE BANK BELIEVES THAT THIS IS IMPORTANT NEWS TO SHARE WITH OUR 
CLIENTS. WE ARE MAKING IT AVAILABLE TO YOU FOR YOUR INFORMATION AND ANY 
ACTION THAT YOU MAY CONSIDER APPROPRIATE. 

Signature Relationship Summary Opening Bal. Closing Bal. 

BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 
 MONOGRAM INSURED MMA 70,236.90 70,294.65 

RELATIONSHIP TOTAL 70,294.65 

0   



                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                 

 

 
                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                 

 Statement Period 
From September 01, 2019 
To September 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 2

 PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP 181 
565 FIFTH AVENUE 
NEW YORK, NY 10017 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 8-181 
ESCROW 
35-59 81ST STREET 
JACKSON HEIGHTS NY 11372 

See Back for Important Information 

Primary Account:  

MONOGRAM INSURED MMA  

Summary 

Previous Balance as of September 01, 2019 70,236.90 
1 Credits 57.75 

Ending Balance as of September 30, 2019 70,294.65 

Deposits and Other Credits 
Sep 30 Interest Paid 57.75 

Daily Balances 
Aug 31 70,236.90 Sep 30 70,294.65 

*======================================= Interest Summary ===========================================* 
* Year-To-Date Interest 526.97 * 
* Interest Paid This Period 57.75 Annual Percentage Yield Earned 1.00 % * 
* Avg. Balance this Period 70,236.90 Days in Period 30 * 
*=======================================================================================================* 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

   
    
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

12,790,514 -
12,790,493 -

21 -
604 -

- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

- -
- -
- -

TOTAL 

12,790,514 
12,790,493 

21 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

District of Location $16,150.00 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

9,754,600 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

9,754,600 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

9,754,600 

-
-
-
-

9,754,600 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

1,232,984 -

- -
150,000 -
830,211 -

11,967,795 

74,354 -
120,498 -

15,445 -
308,000 -

- -
- -
- -

518,297 

15,000 -
31,422 -

3,000 -
- -

7,200 -
30,000 -

217,800 -
304,422 

12,790,514 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

1,232,984 

-
150,000 

830,211 

11,967,795 

74,354 

120,498 

15,445 

308,000 

-
-
-

518,297 

15,000 

31,422 

3,000 

-
7,200 

30,000 

217,800 

304,422 

12,790,514 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 177,162 - - - - 177,162 

Instructional Management 1.00 141,287 - - - - 141,287 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 6.00 752,967 - - - - 752,967 



    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 12,790,514 - - - -
Total Expenses 12,790,493 - - - -

Net Income 21 - - - -
Actual Student Enrollment 604 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

12,790,514 
12,790,493 

21 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 141,287 - - - -
Operation / Business Manager - - - - - -
Administrative Staff 12.66 560,614 - - - -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 22 1,773,317 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 28.00 2,709,055 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 5.00 425,446 - - - -
Substitute Teachers - 100,000 - - - -
Teaching Assistants 4.80 218,360 - - - -
Specialty Teachers 10.80 1,113,944 - - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 2.00 216,624 - - - -
Other 668,383 - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 51 5,451,812 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 72 7,225,129 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 712,513 - - - -
Fringe / Employee Benefits 1,459,116 - - - -
Retirement / Pension 1,680,737 - - - -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 3,852,366 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 11,077,495 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 50,000 - - - -
Legal 50,000 - - - -
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch 50,000 - - - -
Payroll Services 25,000 - - - -
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) 2,500 - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 125,000 - - - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 302,500 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

141,287 

-
560,614 

1,773,317 

2,709,055 

425,446 

100,000 

218,360 

1,113,944 

-
216,624 

668,383 

5,451,812 

-
-
-
-
-

7,225,129 

712,513 

1,459,116 

1,680,737 

3,852,366 

11,077,495 

50,000 

50,000 

-
-

50,000 

25,000 

-
2,500 

125,000 

302,500 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

   
    
    
    
    

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Board Expenses - - - - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 10,500 - - - - 10,500 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials 1,500 - - - - 1,500 

Textbooks / Workbooks 50,000 - - - - 50,000 

Supplies & Materials other 50,000 - - - - 50,000 

Equipment / Furniture 65,000 - - - - 65,000 

Telephone 1,100 - - - - 1,100 

Technology 125,000 - - - - 125,000 

Student Testing & Assessment 30,000 - - - - 30,000 

Field Trips 30,000 - - - - 30,000 

Transportation (student) 5,000 - - - - 5,000 

Student Services - other - - - - - -
Office Expense 50,000 - - - - 50,000 

Staff Development 75,000 - - - - 75,000 

Staff Recruitment 500 - - - - 500 

Student Recruitment / Marketing - - - - -
School Meals / Lunch 500,000 - - - - 500,000 

Travel (Staff) 5,000 - - - - 5,000 

Fundraising - - - - - -
Other 253,898 - - - - 253,898 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,252,498 1,252,498 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 100,000 - - - - 100,000 

Janitorial - - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease - - - - - -
Repairs & Maintenance - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 100,000 100,000 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 58,000 - - - - 58,000 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 12,790,493 12,790,493 

NET INCOME 21 - - - - 21 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

District of Location -
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 12,790,514 - - - - 12,790,514 
Total Expenses 12,790,493 - - - - 12,790,493 

Net Income 21 - - - - 21 
Actual Student Enrollment 604 - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL - - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - - -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 12,790,514 - - - - 12,790,514 
Total Expenses 12,790,493 - - - - 12,790,493 

Net Income 21 - - - - 21 
Actual Student Enrollment 604 - -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

     

        

    

    

     

 

         

    
             

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Receive no funding for D75 students 

Supplemental Aid, Proportionate Share Agreement and Conversion Charter Funding 

Based on previous year's figure 

Tile IIA and Title IVA 

PTA Gift to School/Friends of Renaissance 

NYSTL Estimate 

PreK 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Principal 
1 Teaching & Learning Director 
1 Director of Development, 1 Director of Data & Accountability and 4 Educational Administrators 



     

              

 

    

 

        

     

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Receive no funding for D75 students 

1 Director of Operations and Finance 

8.66 School Aides, 1 Intern Coordinator, 1 Parent Outreach, 1 Student Support Assistant, 1 Student 

School Professionals 

Paraprofessionals 

Per Session and other wages 



 

 

        

     

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Receive no funding for D75 students 

School Trips 

PreK 



 

        

     

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Receive no funding for D75 students 































































	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Last updated: 07/10/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Dr. Monte 1 Joffee 

Everett 2 Boyd 

Stacey3 Gauthier 

Chester 4 Hicks 

Raymond5 Johnson 

Margaret
6 Martinez

DeLuca 

Dr. 
7 Rachel 

Mandel 

Conor T. 8 McCoy 

Francine 9 Smith 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Educatio 
n 
Support,
Executive 

Executive 

Principal 

Finance 

Finance, 
Educatio 
n Support 

Educatio 
n Support 

Finance 

Finance 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

3 

3 

3 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

3 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

05/01/20
19 

09/01/20
15 

09/01/20
15 

09/01/20
18 

09/01/20
17 

10/01/20
14 

02/01/20
16 

09/01/20
16 

09/01/20
14 

End Date Board 
of Meetings
Current Attended 
Term During
(MM/DD/Y 2018 19 
YYY) 

05/01/20 5 or less 24 

09/01/20 5 or less 20 

09/01/20 5 or less 20 

09/01/20 5 or less 19 

09/01/20 5 or less 19 

10/01/20 5 or less 19 

02/01/20 5 or less 21 

09/01/20 5 or less 21 

09/01/20 5 or less 19 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

9 

0 

1 

10 

5 

12 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 07/16/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

Yes 

A. Provide if posted on the 

charter school's website a URL 

http://www.renaissancecharter.org/support/governance/BOT 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 06/25/2019 • Last updated: 07/16/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 
Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 
toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

The Renaissance Charter Schools (TRCS) has
adopted the best practice guidelines
established by The New York City Charter
Schools Center in its recruitment of special
populations, including economically
disadvantaged students. RCS has an
Admissions’ Coordinator who also happens to
be a resident of Jackson Heights and
intimately knows the community.
Supporting her in her work are two parent
coordinators and the Administrator for 
School Culture and Family Engagement. At
RCS, we have 24 home languages spoken,
and our staff speak over 11 different
languages. We have developed a reputation
in the community for caring for and
supporting
special populations. The school also has 2
guidance counselors and a social worker to
support our special needs students. Our
teaching model also embraces Integrative
Collaborative Teaching in many of our high
needs classrooms. 

We create a timeline for open houses,
outreach and admissions each year.
Translation is available at our open houses.
Last school year we had two high schoolEconom open houses in the fall and three PK 8 open ically 

RCS, as a long standing school, is an integral
part of our community and school district.
We regularly participate in events beyond
our school and have staff and family
“ambassadors” who promote our school to
those they have connections with. 

RCS faculty, staff and parents attend a wide
variety of community meetings. In fact,
many TRCS members are also members and
officials on various community organizations’
boards and membership rosters. We utilize
these relationships to help us to grow our
ties to the community at large. 

RCS has long been known for our strong ties
with our elected representatives. They are in
our school frequently, hold events in our
building, work with us on community matters
and connect us with people in the
community. Stacey Gauthier and other staff
have been asked to sit on committees and 
support various projects that help the
families in our area. 

RCS’ materials are posted on our website and
distributed widely as described above. Our 

1 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

Disadva houses in January and March. 
ntaged 

TRCS, as a long standing school, is an
integral part of our community and school
district. We regularly participate in events
beyond our school and have staff and family
“ambassadors” who promote our school to
those they have connections with. 

TRCS faculty, staff and parents attend a wide
variety of community meetings. In fact,
many TRCS members are also members and
officials on various community organizations’
boards and membership rosters. We utilize
these relationships to help us to grow our
ties to the community at large. 

RCS has long been known for our strong ties
with our elected representatives. They are in
our school frequently, hold events in our
building, work with us on community matters
and connect us with people in the
community. Stacey Gauthier and other staff
have been asked to sit on committees and 
support various projects that help the
community. 

In addition, it should be noted that we back
fill every empty seat, with a mini lottery from
our wait list of over 3500 in 2018 2019. 

We joined the PK For All initiative knowing
that our youngest learners would most likely
consist of many multi language learners. And
we were correct. Our percentages of MLLs
has ranged from 25% to this year 55% over
the four years we have implemented the
program. Due to this and ongoing efforts to
recruit and retain ELL students, our 
percentage of kindergarten, first, second and
fourth grades now exceed the community
school district as do our Forever ELLs in 
grades 1 and 2. 

TRCS has adopted the best practice
guidelines
established by The New York City Charter
Schools Center in its recruitment of special
populations, including English Language
Learners. Our admissions coordinator and 
one of our two parent coordinators are fluent
in Spanish  which is spoken by
approximately 59% of our 

parent coordinators visited a neighborhood
community center to leave our brochures
and speak to families; we participate in
middle and high school fairs, and we have
personal relationships with administrators
from the schools in our district, for those 
families looking for an alternative to their
neighborhood district school. We have a
long time partnership with 82nd Street
Academics, a community based after school
and UPK organization, and we regularly
supply admissions information to their 
parents. 

We participate in The New York City Charter
School’s Common Application and also
translate our admissions’ information into 
Spanish, Mandarin, Bengali and Urdu.
RCS Open House attendees have historically
filled our cafeteria. We have staff and 
parents available to translate as needed. We
also attend open houses outside of our
building including a yearly Principal’s Night
Forum sponsored by the Jackson Heights
Beautification Group and 82nd Street
Academics. 

School wide programming and staffing
that supports English Language Learners 
• SETTSS, ICT, Related Services, for ELLS 
with IEP's; 
• Grade K 8 Reading Remediation program;
and dedicated ELL Services teacher. 
• Partnership with the SPED Collaborative's
ELL Consortium 

2 / 8 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

families). 

RCS has strong ties within and beyond our
community as discussed previously in this
document. We continue to expand these
relationships through our school wide
partnerships, parent and board contacts,
professional development and support of
neighborhood initiatives. 

TRCS, as a long standing school, is an
integral part of our community and school
district. We regularly participate in events
beyond our school and have staff and family
“ambassadors” who promote our school to
those they have connections with. 

English TRCS faculty, staff and parents attend a wide
Langua variety of community meetings. In fact,
ge many TRCS members are also members and
Learner officials on various community organizations’
s/Multili boards and membership rosters. We utilize
ngual these relationships to help us to grow our
Learner ties to the community at large. 
s 

We have worked hard to hire a faculty and
staff that is representative of the population
we serve and the community at large. Our
staff speak over 11 different languages
many of which are also spoken by our
families. The school has a certified ELL 
teacher, and our teaching model also
embraces Integrative Collaborative Teaching
in many of our high needs classrooms,
supporting our ELL, SPED and other high
needs students. 

We create a timeline for open houses,
outreach and admissions each year.
Translation is available at our open houses.
Last school year we have held two
high school open houses in the fall and three
PK 8 open houses in January and March.
Additionally, open houses are held during the
day and in the evening to
accommodate the working schedules of
interested families. TRCS also backfills in all 
grades throughout the year which allows for
seats to be filled whenever one becomes 
available. 

We send notices of our open houses and
application process to local newspapers 

• Specialized support for ELL students both
in subject classes and in selective “pull outs”
• Utilizing our Writing Workshop Model to
support our upper grade ELL students
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Offer various food menus from our 
schoolrun 
cafeteria including Halal meals
• Parent Representatives from various
backgrounds participate in our Parent
Association and Collaborative School 
Governance Committee 
• K 12 After School, including homework help
• The Learning Center  An innovative space
where individualized learning takes place
• Advisory for Grades 7 12
• Four Year College Bound Program (the staff
of this program have worked extensively with
undocumented students, first generation
college students, students with special needs
and families who need extensive support
through the college process)
• Many bilingual support staff who work inthe
office, cafeteria, kitchen, and school safety
who support parents in communicating with
the school 
• We will continue with the Pre K program in
2019 20. Our successful Pre K program is a
“feeder” to our K 12 program and has
enrolled, over the past 5 years, a student
population in which 25 50% of students are
multi language emergent and more than
55% have a home language other than
English. The language diversity of TRCS’ pre
K will ensure that its future incoming
kindergarten classes will include significant
numbers of percentage of English language
emergent students will grow across the
grades. Although these students cannot be
officially “classified”, we know that it is
enormously helpful to get these children
enrolled at such a young age when second
language acquisition
comes more easily through a rigorous
program of socialization, play and group
activities. This also allows us to engage our
families from the beginning of a child’s entry
to school. 
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(including those in different languages),
Inside Schools (who recognizes us on their
website as being an effective school for
children with special needs), district schools,
elected officials, community based
organization (including those suggested by
The New York Charter Center as having
strong ties to families of children with special
needs, and those families who speak
languages other than English) and to other
organizations and businesses with ties to the
community. 

It should be noted that the number of ELL 
students in our school who also have IEPs is 
significantly higher than CSD 30.
(Renaissance: 43%, CSD 30: 24%). 

In addition, we back fill every empty seat,
with a mini lottery from our wait list of over
3500 in 2018 2019. 

Student RCS hosts many events and activitiess with throughout the year designed to be inclusiveDisabilit and welcoming to our families. We are alsoies mindful that we need to tailor our approach
to families; understanding that “one size fits
all doesn’t work”. This goes hand in hand
with our individual approach to looking at the
whole child. We extend this philosophy to the
family and in doing so, design family
conferences and outreach to best meet the 
needs of all of our families. 

School wide programming and staffing that
supports Special Needs Students and English
Language Learners with IEPs:
• SETTSS, ICT, Related Services, Schoolbased 
guidance and social workers
• Grade K 8 Reading Remediation and
Support including LLI, Orton Gillingham and
Wilson Reading; a new K 8 initiative called
"TRIP: Targeted Reading Intervention
Program" that will give targeted reading
intervention a daily block of time for mixed
age small reading groups based on levels.
• Partnership with the Achievement Network
• Partnership with the SPED Collaborative
• Utilizing our Writing Workshop Model to
support our upper grade IEP students
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Parents of students with special needs are
represented on our Parent Association and
Collaborative School Governance Committee 
• K 12 After School, including homework help
• The Learning Center  An innovative space
where individualized learning takes place
• Advisory for Grades 7 12
• Four Year College Bound Program (the staff
of this program have worked extensively with
students with special needs and families who
need extensive support through the college
process)
• Continuation of the Pre K program, where
children can be diagnosed early, and
interventions are put in place. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

School wide programming and staffing that 
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Our policies include never excluding students
from activities their families cannot afford, 
including trips, internships and other
experiential learning activities. We have
developed a reputation in the neighborhood
for supporting our families in times of need.
Our social workers and college and career
office works individually with students and
families to take advantage of all supports
open to them, through financial aid for
college to social services. 

Renaissance was awarded the Community
Eligibility Provision (CEP) from National
School Food Program in 2018 2019, and
provides free breakfast, lunch, and supper to

Econom all of our students. We are proud of our food
ically program, which employs a full kitchen staff
Disadva and an onsite chef who creates the menus, 
ntaged cooks and supervises the staff to create

globally influenced meals that appeal to our
entire community. 

RCS hosts many events and activities
throughout the year designed to be inclusive
and welcoming to our families. 

We are also mindful that we need to tailor 
our approach to families; understanding that
“one size fits all doesn’t work”. This goes
hand in hand with our 
individual approach to looking at the whole
child. We extend this philosophy to the
family and in doing so, design family
conferences and outreach to best meet the 
needs of our community. 

supports all of our students 
• School based guidance and social workers
with access to resources to help families
• Grade K 8 Reading Remediation and
Support including LLI, Orton Gillingham and
Wilson Reading; free after school
programming from 5th grade and up
• Partnership with the Achievement Network
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Offer various food menus from our school
run 
cafeteria including breakfast, lunch, supper
and snack. 
• Parent Representatives from various
backgrounds participate in our Parent
Teacher Association and Collaborative School 
Governance Committee 
• K 12 After School, including homework help
• The Learning Center  An innovative space
+where individualized learning takes place
• Advisory for Grades 7 12
• Four Year College Bound Program (the staff
of this program have worked extensively with
undocumented students, first generation
college students, and families who need
extensive support through the college
process)
• Implementation of a Pre K program in
2014. This allows us to engage our families
from the beginning of a child’s entry to
school. 
• Partnership with the SPED Collaborative
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Offer various food menus from our 
schoolrun 
cafeteria including Halal meals
• Parent Representatives from various
backgrounds participate in our Parent
Teacher Association and Collaborative School 
Governance Committee 
• Many bilingual support staff who work in
the office, cafeteria, kitchen, and school 
safety who support parents in
communicating with the school
• Implementation of a Pre K program in
2014. In our first year, approximately 17% of
the class were English Language Learners.
This year, that percentage has grown to
6 / 8
family and in doing so, design family
conferences and outreach to best meet the 
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RCS hosts many events and activities
throughout the year designed to be inclusive
and welcoming to our families. We are also
mindful that we need to tailor our approach
to families; understanding that “one size fits

English all doesn’t work”. This goes hand in hand
Langua with our individual approach to looking at the
ge whole child. We extend this philosophy to the
Learner family and in doing so, design family
s/Multili conferences and outreach to best meet the 
ngual needs of our community. 
Learner 
s We are proud of our food program, which

employs a full kitchen staff and an onsite
chef who creates the menus, cooks and 
supervises the staff to create globally
influenced meals that appeal to our entire
community. 

needs of our community.
almost 28%. Although these students cannot
be officially “classified”, we know that we are
admitting and servicing students who speak
little to no English. It is enormously helpful to
get these children enrolled at such a young
age when second language acquisition
comes more easily through a rigorous
program of socialization, play and group
activities. This also allows us to engage our
families from the beginning of a child’s entry
to school. 

School wide programming and staffing that 
supports
English Language Learners 
• SETTSS, ICT, Related Services, for ELL 
students with IEP's; Schoolbased guidance
and social workers 
• Grade K 8 Reading Remediation and
Support including LLI, Orton Gillingham and
Wilson Reading
• Partnership with the Achievement Network
• Partnership with the SPED Collaborative's
ELL Coalition 
• Specialized support for ELL students both
in subject classes and in selective “pull outs”
• Utilizing our Writing Workshop Model to
support our upper grade ELL students
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Offer various food memus from our school
run cafeteria including Halal meals
• Parent Representatives from various
backgrounds participate in our Parent
Teacher Association and Collaborative School 
Governance Committee 
• K 12 After School, including homework help
• The Learning Center  An innovative space
where individualized learning takes place
• Advisory for Grades 7 12
• Four Year College Bound Program (the staff
of this program have worked extensively with
undocumented students, first generation
college students, and families who need
extensive support through the college
process)
• Many bilingual support staff who work in
the office, cafeteria, kitchen, and school 
safety who support parents in
communicating with the school
• We will continue with the Pre K program in
2019 20. Our successful Pre K program is a 
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RCS works with every child individually,
providing services for students with
disabilities from individualized academic and 
social emotional plans through our ICT and
SETTS classes, and advisories. 

RCS hosts many events and activitiesStudent throughout the year designed to be inclusives with and welcoming to our families. We are alsoDisabilit mindful that we need to tailor our approachies to families; understanding that “one size fits
all doesn’t work”. This goes hand in hand
with our individual approach to looking at the
whole child. We extend this philosophy to the
family and in doing so, design family
conferences and outreach to best meet the 
needs of our community. 

“feeder” to our K 12 program and has
enrolled, over the past 5 years, a student
population in which 25 50% of students are
multi language emergent and more than
55% have a home language other than
English. The language diversity of TRCS’ pre
K will ensure that its future incoming
kindergarten classes will include significant
numbers of percentage of English language
emergent students will grow across the
grades. Although these students cannot be
officially “classified”, we know that it is
enormously helpful to get these children
enrolled at such a young age when second
language acquisition
comes more easily through a rigorous
program of socialization, play and group
activities. This also allows us to engage our
families from the beginning of a child’s entry
to school. 

School wide programming and staffing
that supports Special Needs Students 
• SETTSS, ICT, Related Services, Schoolbased 
guidance and social workers
• Grade K 8 Reading Remediation and
Support including LLI, Orton Gillingham and
Wilson Reading
• Partnership with the Achievement Network
• Partnership with the SPED Collaborative
• Before, After and Saturday Small Group
tutoring
• Parents of students with special needs are
represented on our Parent Association and
Collaborative School Governance Committee 
• K 12 After School, including homework help
• The Learning Center  An innovative space
where individualized learning takes place
• Advisory for Grades 7 12
• Four Year College Bound Program (the staff
of this program have worked extensively with
students with special needs so they learn to
advocate for the services they are entitled to
after they leave Renaissance. The team has
long experience working with families who
need extensive support through the college
process)
• Many bilingual support staff who work in
the office, cafeteria, kitchen, and school 
safety who support parents in
communicating with the school
• Continuation of the Pre K program, where
children can be diagnosed early, and 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/16/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

42.8 1 2 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

9 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

0 43.8 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 9 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/16/2019 • Last updated: 07/17/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

43.8 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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School Management Team 
Directors report to and collaborate with the Principal. 

Principal 
Director of Teaching and Learning 
Director of Data and Accountability 
Director of Operations and Finance 

Director of Development and Partnerships 
Administrator for School Culture and Student Support 

Administrator for Family Engagement and Student Support 
Administrator for STEM Education and Middle School 

Administrator for Special Education 

Teaching and Learning Coordinators 
Teacher Coordinators report to the Directors of Teaching and Learning and 

collaborate with the teaching staff in clusters. 

Cluster 1 (PK-5) – Co-Coordinators 
Cluster 2 (6-8) – Co-Coordinators 
Cluster 3 (9-12) – Co-Coordinators 

Teaching Staff 
Teachers and Paraprofessionals report to Principal and Director of Teaching and Learning, 

communicate with Teacher Coordinators, collaborate with cluster colleagues. 

Cluster 1 – Grades Pre-K-5 
Pre-K Teacher Grade 2-5 Interdisciplinary Science 
Pre-K Paraprofessional Grade 4-6 Social Studies* 
Kindergarten K-6 Intervention Specialist* 
Kindergarten Education Paraprofessional K-6 Intervention Specialist* 
Grade 1 K-6 Intervention Specialist* 
Grade 1 Education Paraprofessional Grade PK-5 Music 
Grade 2 Grade K-4 Dance 
Grade 3 Grade PK-12 ELL* 
Grade 4 Grade PK-5 Spanish 
Grade 4-5 Math Specialist RTI Coordinator PK-5 
Grade 5-6 ELA* 5th-8th Literacy Support/Intervention 

*(may also attend other cluster meetings) 

ORGANIZATIONAL DIAGRAM – THE RENAISSANCE CHARTER SCHOOL – 2019 - 2020 



       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

   
   

   
   

    
   

    
     
   

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

  
   
 

  
  

 
  

  
  

    
   

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
    

   
  

Teaching Staff 
Teachers and Paraprofessionals report to Principal and Middle School Administrator, 

communicate with Teacher Coordinators, collaborate with cluster colleagues. 

Cluster 2 – Grades 6-8 
Grade 5-6 ELA*; TRIP MS Spanish 
Grade 4-6 Social Studies*; TRIP MS PE/Science & Math Support 
Grade 7 ELA; TRIP MS Literacy Support/TRIP 
Grade 8 ELA; TRIP 6-8 Music 
Grade 7-8 Social Studies, US History Regents; TRIP 6-8 Art 
Grade 5-6 Science; 8th Math Support; TRIP 7-8 Drama 
Grade 7 & 8 Math; TRIP MS RTI Coordinator 
Grade 7 & 8 Algebra Regents; TRIP 
Grade 7 Science; TRIP 
MS Earth Science 
MS/HS Science ICT 

TRIP: Targeted Reading Intervention Program 

Teaching Staff 
Teachers and Paraprofessionals report to Principal and Director of Teaching and Learning, 

communicate with Teacher Coordinators, collaborate with cluster colleagues. 

Cluster 3 – Grades 9-12 
9th -10th Grade ELA 
11th-12th Grade ELA, Honors ELA 
AP English Literature & Composition* 
HS ELA ICT 
HS Global History and Geography; TRIP 
HS US History; TRIP 
AP US History, AP World History, AP European History 
MS/HS Social Studies ICT 
HS Math ICT 
HS Geometry, Pre-Calculus 
HS Algebra I, Algebra II, Pre-Calculus Support 
HS AP Environmental Science, HS Earth Science/Chemistry Extension; MS Science Support 
HS Physics, HS Science Elective 
HS Chemistry, AP Biology* 
HS living Environment, Agriculture, MS Science Support 
9-11 Music, 9-11 Art, 9-11 Theatre* 
6th-12th Grade Physical Education; TRIP 
HS Spanish, AP Spanish Literature 
HS Spanish, AP Spanish Language 
College & Career Office Guidance, College Bound 
College Literacy Skills, College Bound 
TLC (The Learning Center) Paraprofessional (2) 
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Guidance Staff 
Social Worker and Guidance Counselors report to Principal, Administrator for School 
Culture, Director of Teaching & Learning, communicate with Teacher Coordinators, 

collaborate with cluster colleagues. 

Social Worker 
College Guidance Counselor 

Administrative Support Staff 
Support Staff report to Principal and Director of Operations and 

to School Management Team Directors. 

Recess/Cafeteria 
Recess/Athletic Director/Cafeteria 
HS Registrar/Parent Outreach 
Office Staff/Human Resources 
Office Staff/Cafeteria 
Pupil Personnel/HS Operations-Media Center 
School Food Coordinator 
Office/Transportation 
MS Operations/Media Center 

Other Administrative Staff 
Other Administrative Staff report to Principal and various School Management Team 
members, communicate with Teacher Coordinators, collaborate with cluster colleagues. 

Development Associate and Parent Outreach 
Leadership and Community Service Coordinator 

Student Support Associate 
Student Behavior Management Associate 
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